



Sales Analysis User Manual

Copyright © 2021 by Samco Software Inc. Revised 7/8/2021

PROPRIETARY RIGHTS NOTICE: All rights reserved. No part of this material may be reproduced or transmitted in any form or by any means, electronic, mechanical, or otherwise, including photocopying and recording or in connection with any information storage or retrieval system, without the permission in writing from SAMCO Software Inc.

SAMCO Software Inc. ("SAMCO") has taken reasonable preventative measure to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this manual. However, SAMCO makes no warranties or representations with respect to the information contained herein; and SAMCO shall not be liable for damages resulting from any errors or omissions herein or from the use of the information contained in this manual.

SAMCO is a registered trademark of SAMCO Software Inc., 8661 – 201st Street, 2nd Floor, Langley, BC V2Y 0G9, Canada. Telephone (604) 597-4211 <u>http://www.samco.com</u>

Other product and company names are trademarks of their respective corporations





Table of Contents

Introduction	
A/R and I/C Reports	
P/S, Billing (O/E), and P/I Reports	
Sales Analysis Menu	
Getting Started	
Regular Use	
To Start Sales Analysis	
Customer	
Customer Profit	
Customer Sales Volume	
Customer Type	
Customers for an Item	
Item	
Item Category	
Item Sales Volume	
Items for a Customer	
Province / State	
Postal / Zip Code	
Sales Rep - Actual	
Sales Rep - Responsible	
User Defined	
Loading Previously Save Reports	
Entering Report Criteria	
Saving a Report	
Services for a Customer	

Customers for a Service	
Customer Product	
Monthly Activity Analysis	20.1
Loading Previously Save Reports	
Sorting Options	20.1
Cat / Sub-Category for a Customer	21.1
Five Year Item History	22.1
Item Fill-Rate	23.1
X. Export Printer Reports	24.1
Available Reports	
Printing reports to an export file	24.1
How to set the default for opening a SAMCO .tab file in Windows XP	24.4
How to set the default for opening a SAMCO .tab file in Windows 7	24.8





Introduction

Sales Analysis includes most of the features asked for by thousands of users whose experience over the years with earlier versions of this Package have helped refine it to its current mature level.

Sales Analysis (aka S/A) runs together with the Accounts Receivable (A/R), Inventory (I/C), Billing (O/E), Point of Sale (P/S), and Professional Invoicing (P/I) Packages. You can use S/A with:

A/R only I/C only I/C and P/S A/R, I/C, and P/S A/R, I/C, and Billing (O/E), A/R and P/I A/R, I/C, and P/I

Any reports can be stored on disk to save computer time, then printed later at your convenience. Sales Analysis also allows use of multiple printers.

A/R and I/C Reports

The following table shows the reports which are available when using A/R only, when using I/C only, or when both A/R and I/C are in use:

<u>Report</u>	<u>A/R only</u>	I/C only	<u>Both</u>
Cat/Sub Cat for a Customer ³			Х
Customer	Х		Х
Customer Product ³			Х
Customer Profit	Х		Х
Customer Type	Х		Х
Customer Sales Volume	Х		Х
Customer for an Item			Х
Customers for a Service ²	Х		
Customer Product			Х
ltem		Х	Х
Item Category		Х	Х
Item Sales Volume		Х	Х
Items for a Customer			Х
Monthly Activity Analysis ³			Х
Postal Code	Х		Х
Province	Х		Х
Sales Rep, Responsible	Х		Х
Sales Rep, Actual	X ¹		Х*
Services for a Customer	X ²		
User Defined Report	Х	Х	Х

¹ Only the summary report is available. The detail report requires both the use of either P/S, Billing (O/E), or P/I and that invoice history is kept in P/S, Billing (O/E), or P/I.

²Requires Professional Invoicing.

³Requires P/S, Billing (O/E), or P/I (with Inventory Management).

P/S, Billing (O/E), and P/I Reports

If P/S or Billing (O/E) is used and invoice history is kept, then the Customers for an Item Report and the Items for a Customer Report are available.

If P/I is used and interfaced to I/C, and P/I invoice history kept, the Customers for an Item Report and the Items for a Customer Report are available.

If P/I is used and invoice history is kept, then the Customers for a Service Report and the Services for a Customer Report are available. These reports do not require that I/C be interfaced to P/I.

Sales Analysis Menu

S/A includes a mini-menu from which the desired reports can be selected. Each of the S/A reports can be printed at any time without affecting any of the data files

from which they draw their information.

Customer Report

This report shows period-to-date, year-to-date, and last year sales, cost of sales, gross profit figures, and margin percent for each customer in Accounts Receivable. Each customer's percent of total sales and percent of total gross profit is also shown.

Customer Type Report

This report shows the same information as the Sales Analysis by Customer, but customers are grouped and subtotalled by customer type. ("Customer type" is a user-defined, 3-character code that can be assigned to each customer in Accounts Receivable or Professional Invoicing.)

A summary is printed for this report, showing each customer type's total sales, total cost of sales, total gross profit, percent of total sales, and percent of total gross profit.

Customer Sales Volume Report

This report lists customers in order by sales volume. It shows sales, costs of sales, gross profit figures, and margin percent, as well as each customer's percent of total sales and percent of total gross profit. These amounts are shown for period-to-date, year-to-date, and last year.

Customers can be printed in order by either period-to-date, year-to-date, or last year sales dollar volume.

Optionally, you can specify a minimum dollar volume, or you can specify to print only the top "n" customers (where "n" is any number from 1 to 9,999).

Sales Rep, Responsible, Report

This report shows the period-to-date, year-to-date, and last year sales, cost of sales, and gross profit, and margin percent for each customer. These figures are grouped by responsible sales rep with subtotals by sales rep.

The report includes a summary which shows each sales rep's percent of total sales and percent of total gross profit.

Sales Rep, Actual, Report

Two formats are available for this report: summary and detail. For each sales rep, the summary format shows the sales amount, percent of total company sales, cost of sales, profit, percent margin, percent commission amount, and commission percent of sales. The detail format shows the above information for each customer for each sales rep.

Province Report

Customers are printed grouped by province on this report. Sales, cost of sales, gross profit figures, and margin percent are shown for each customer. Subtotals are shown by province.

A summary is produced which shows each province's percent of total sales and percent of total gross profit.

Postal Code Report

Customers are printed grouped by postal code on this report.

A summary shows individual postal code percent of total sales, cost of sales, profits, and margin percent for the period-to-date and year-to-date.

Item Report

This report shows basic sales information for each item in Inventory Management.

The information printed includes quantity sold, quantity returned, sales amount, costs, gross profit, margin percent, and each item's percent of total sales and percent of total gross profit, by both period-to-date and year-to-date. Prior period figures can also be shown.

Item Category Report

This report shows the same information as the Item Report, but items are grouped and subtotalled by item category or item sub-category. ("Item category" and "sub-category" are user-defined, 5-character codes that can be assigned to each item.)

A summary is printed for this report which shows each item category's or sub-category's total sales, total cost of sales, total gross profit, percent of total sales, and percent of total gross profit.

Item Sales Volume Report

This report lists items in order by sales volume. It shows sales, costs of sales, gross profit, and margin percent figures, as well as each item's percent of total sales and percent of total gross profit.

Items can be printed in order by either period-to-date or year-to-date sales dollar volume. You can also specify a minimum dollar volume or specify to print only the top "n" items ("n" is any number from 1 to 9,999).

Items for a Customer Report

This report shows quantity sold, sales, percent of sales, cost of sales, profit, and margin percent for a selected range of items within up to four selected reporting periods, showing the items purchased by each customer.

Customers for an Item Report

This report shows the same information as the preceding report, arranged by item, showing the customers who purchased each item.

Services for a Customer Report

This report shows quantity sold, sales, percent of sales, cost of sales, profit, and margin percent for a selected range of services within up to four selected reporting periods, showing the services purchased by each customer.

Customers for a Service Report

This report shows the same information as the preceding report, arranged by service, showing the customers who purchased each service.

User Defined Report

This report allows you to create your own analysis report. You determine what information is printed, how it is sorted, and what reporting periods to analyse.

Monthly Activity Analysis

With plenty of selection criteria and variations, this is a 13 month columnar report for product sales.

Customer Product

Sorted by customer, this report provides a quarterly and periodic analysis summarized by item category.

Cat / Sub-Cat for a Customer

Available in a detail or brief format, this report, sorted by customer, shows the unit and dollar sales for each item category and sub-category for the specified date ranges.

Item Fill-Rate

Provides an analysis of quantity ordered versus quantity actually shipped. This report can provide invoice by invoice detail, summary by item for customers, or summarized by item.





Getting Started

We assume at this point that you have installed Sales Analysis on your computer according to the *Installation Guide*. If you have not done so, refer to that manual and install the S/A Package before proceeding.

We also assume that you have familiarized yourself with the main features of this package by reading the Chapter titled *Introduction*. If you have not done so, read that Chapter now, then, return to this Chapter.

Your Accountant

We advise you to consult with your accountant before using Samco software. Your accountant should be familiar with your accounting software in order to serve you well, and may have good advice on converting from your existing S/A system.

The Sales Analysis Data Files

Unlike other Samco Packages, you don't have to create any data files for Sales Analysis. The information used in the S/A reports comes from the data files of Accounts Receivable, Inventory Management, Point of Sale, Billing (O/E), and Professional Invoicing.

Regular Use

S/A is ready for use as soon as it's installed. Refer to the *System Functions* manual for instructions on turning it on in each company ID you want to use it in.

The remaining Chapters explain the S/A reports. The reports show sales, cost, and profit information that will help you spot such things as the best-selling items or item categories, the most profitable sales region, the most productive sales personnel, or your best customers.

- NOTE: The "grand totals" printed on a Sales Analysis Report often reflect the total quantity and / or value of all sales. "Grand totals" are often misinterpreted as "column totals".

Samco Support

The user manuals are designed to allow you to use Samco's Power Accounting application software without any additional help. However, if you encounter problems you cannot resolve by referring to these manuals, you may want to get additional assistance. Your supplier should be able to provide such assistance, or he may be able to recommend an independent source.

Samco Help Desk

8661 – 201st Street, 2nd Floor Langley, BC V2Y 0G9 Canada Phone:(604) 597 4211 E-mail: support@samco.com Web: <u>http://www.samco.com</u>

Samco provides support on **a fee-for-service basis.** Please ensure that you have the software release, serial number(s), media type, payment information (Visa or MasterCard) and other related information available when you call.

For a detailed description of Samco's support and Customer services, please check out our web site at http://www.samco.com.

You may go to your own dealer for training; however, if your dealer does not offer training, call Samco at (800) 663-2080, for information and cost.

To Start Sales Analysis

From your company ID's main menu select *Sales Analysis*. (If *Sales Analysis* does not appear on the main menu refer to the Chapter titled *Company Data* in the *Systems Function* manual for details.)

All of the reports available for printing are displayed on this screen. A second screen is available for less commonly used functions. To get to page 2 of the menu, press **[F2]** from page 1. Make selections from page 2 the same way as from page 1.

To return to page 1 of the menu, press [Tab].

To Exit the S/A Package

To exit the S/A Package, press **[Tab]** from the S/A menu. The main menu reappears for you to select another module to work with.





Customer

This report shows sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date, year-to-date, and last year for each customer in the Customer file.

To Begin

From the S/A menu select *Customer*. Select the printer to send the report to.

This report uses the sales information contained in the Customer function of Accounts Receivable. Be sure you are running the **System functions > Close period by package** at the end of each month.

Date:04/07/16 Time:14:35:45



User: SSI Report #15:

SALES ANALYSIS BY CUSTOMER

Current period ending date: 02/29/16

lust-#	Name City, Prov.	T Sls-rep	ype	Sales amount	Pct-of sales	Cost-of sales	Profit
	Samco Software	с		.00	.0	.00	.00
	MP, BC	HSE	YTD: Last-yr:	.00	.0	.00	.00
			-				
MISC		c		.00	.0	.00	.00
	BC	HSE	YTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
			Last-yr:	74.24	.0	44.11	30.13
1000			PTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
	VANCOUVER, BC	HSE	YTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
			Last-yr:	.00	.0	.00	.00
001			PTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
	DELTA, BC	1000	YTD:	2,464.99	.3	1,400.38	1,064.61
			Last-yr:	14,716.74	.5	8,301.52	6,415.22
.002			PTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
	SURREY, BC	3000	YTD:	12.00	.0	6.45	5.55
			Last-yr:	73.37	.0	42.67	30.70
.003			PTD:	116.42	.1	59.73	56.69
	RICHMOND, BC	1000	YTD:	1,531.18	.2	865.15	666.03
			Last-yr:	8,685.46	.3	5,004.98	3,680.48
004			PTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
	RICHMOND, BC	HSE	YTD:	.00	.0	.00	.00
			Last-yr:	.00	.0	.00	.00
005		INC.	PTD:	15.88	.0	8.41	7.47
	RICHMOND, BC	HSE	YTD:	249.33	.0	132.29	117.04
			Last-yr:	164.42	.0	85.20	79.22
0.0.0				65 A A A		202.45	





Customer Profit

As the title implies, this report provides a summary analysis of customer profitability.

To Begin

From the S/A menu select *Customer profit*.

On the screen displayed, enter the following information:

1. Period-to-Date or Year-to-Date ?

Enter **P** to base the report on period-to-date sales, or **Y** for year-to-date sales. This information comes straight from the customer record. If you have recently run the period end processing in A/R then your numbers may be quite low.

2. Minimum Profit Level

Enter the customer's minimum profit amount to include on the report or press F1 for no minimum. For example, if you enter 5,000 then only those customers who have reached 5,000 in profit will be included on the report.

3. Number of Customers to Print

This field allows you to limit the number of clients printed on the report.





Customer Sales Volume

This report lists customers in order by sales volume. It shows sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date, the year-to-date, and last year for each customer.

It is based on the A/R Customer File.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Customer sales volume*.

On the screen displayed, enter the following information:

1. Print Customers in Order by

Enter one of the following:

- **P** To show customers in order by their period-to-date sales volume
- Y To show them in order by their year-to-date sales volume.
- L To show them in order by their last-year's sales volume.

2. Minimum Sales Volume Level

Enter the minimum sales volume (either PTD or YTD as specified above) that will qualify a customer to appear on the report.

Entering zero means that there is no minimum sales volume level. In this case, all customers will be printed on the report. You can also press **[F1]** for "None", meaning no sales volume cut-off.

3. Number of Customers to Print

Enter the number of customers you want to show on the report, or press **[F1]** to show "All" customers.

The report will print customers in order by sales volume, from greatest to least, but will stop after the number of customers entered here has been printed. This way you can look at your top 10, 20, or 100 customers.





Customer Type

This report shows sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date, the year-to-date, and last year for each customer. Customers are grouped according to their customer type, followed by a summary showing grand totals for all customers and for each type of customer.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Customer type*. A screen appears for you to answer the following questions:

1. Print Each Customer Type on a Separate Page ?

Answer Y to insert a page break between each customer type group; otherwise answer N.

2. Detail or Summary ?

Enter **D** to print both detailed information for each customer, and the summary totals for each customer type. Enter **S** to print the summarized totals for each customer type only.





Customers for an Item

This report shows quantity sold, sales amount, percent of sales, cost of sales, profit, percent of profit, and margin percent for a selected range of items and the customers those items were sold to, within up to four selected reporting periods.

Percentages are based on sales and profits within the selected reporting period.

You can print this report in order by sales volume based on sales in the first selected reporting period.

If you are using Billing (O/E) or P/S, the amounts shown for items are obtained from the Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

If you are using P/I, the amounts shown for items are obtained from the P/I Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

If you are using Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I (with P/I interfaced with Inventory), you may choose to print either goods (from P/I) or inventory items (from Inventory) on a particular print run.

To Begin

From the S/A Menu, select Customers for an item.

This is the screen you see:

Customers for an item	Acme Enterprises Inc.
Please enter	
1. Starting item	
2. Ending item	
3. Print items from	
4. Starting customer	
5. Ending customer	
6. Reporting periods	
7. In order by sales volume ?	
8. Minimum sales volume level	
9. Number of items to print	
10. Brief format ?	
11. Warehouse	
Press F1 for "First"	

Enter the following information:

[?] 1. Starting Item

[?] 2. Ending Item

Enter the range of items to print for each customer selected next, or follow the screen instructions.

3. Print Items For

(This field appears only if both Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I are in use and P/I is not interfaced to Inventory. Otherwise, all subsequent fields are renumbered.)

You may print the report showing either goods (from P/I) or inventory items (from Billing), as explained in the introduction.

Enter either 'G' for goods or 'I' for inventory items.

[?] 4. Starting Customer

[?] 5. Ending Customer

Enter the range of customers to print on the report or follow the screen instructions.

6. Reporting Periods

Enter from 1 to 4 reporting periods. If you enter fewer than 4 reporting periods,

press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below. The reporting periods can overlap. If you select more than 1 reporting period, you will not be asked question 10 below.

7. In Order by Sales Volume ?

If you answer N to this question, you are not asked for an entry in field 8 or 9. If you answer Y, items are printed in descending order of sales volume for each customer. The sales volume used is that from the <u>first</u> reporting period only.

8. Minimum Sales Volume Level

Enter a minimum sales volume level or press **[F1]** for "None" (show all items). If you enter a sales volume level, only items with a sales volume equal to or greater than this level will be shown on the report.

9. Number of Items to Print

Enter the number of items you wish to print for each customer or press **[F1]** to print "All" items.

10. Brief Format ?

Answer **Y** or **N**. You will not be asked this question if you entered more than one reporting period in field 6 above.

[?] 11. Warehouse

(You are asked for this information if you use multi-warehousing in Inventory.)

Enter a warehouse code or press **[F1]** for "All" warehouses. A blank warehouse code represents "Central".





Item

This report shows quantity sold, sales, cost of sales, and profit for the period-to-date and year-to-date for each item in the Inventory Item Status File.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Item*. A screen appears for you to enter the report criteria:

ltem	Acme Enterprises Inc.
Please enter	
1. Warehouse	
2. Starting item #	
3. Ending item #	
4. Inventory account #	
5. Product category	
6. Product sub-category	
7. ABC category	
8. Show qty-returned	
for PTD and YTD ?	
9. Dollar rounding ?	
10. Show prior periods ?	
11. Starting period	
12. Ending period	
Press F1 for "All"	

Enter the following information:

[?] 1. Warehouse

(This field appears only if you are using multi-warehousing in Inventory Management. Otherwise, all subsequent fields are renumbered.)

Enter a warehouse code, press **[F1]** for "All" warehouses, press **[Enter]** to show only items with a "Central" warehouse code (if you defined a Central warehouse code in the Inventory *Warehouses* selection).

[?] 2. Starting Item #

[?] 3. Ending Item #

Enter the range of items to show on the report.

[?] 4. Inventory Account

Enter the Inventory account for which to show items, **[F1]** for the default Inventory account from the Inventory Control File, **[F2]** to scan through the other Inventory accounts on file, or [Enter] for "All" Inventory accounts.

[?] 5. Product Category

Enter the product category for which you wish to show items on the report, **[F1]** to show items for "All" product categories, or **[Enter]** to show only items with no product category specified in the Item File

[?] 6. Product Sub-Category

Enter the product sub-category for which you wish to show items, **[F1]** to show items for "All" product sub-categories, or **[Enter]** to show only items with no product sub-category specified in the Item File.

7. ABC Category

Enter an ABC category (see the Inventory User Manual for a definition of ABC category) or use press **[F1]** for "All" ABC categories

8. Show Qty-Returned for PTD and YTD ?

Answer Y to show the quantity returned PTD (period-to-date) and YTD (year-to-date).

9. Dollar Rounding ?

Type Y to round all dollar amounts shown on the report to the nearest dollar.

You must choose dollar rounding if your grand totals are greater than 9,999,999,999.99.

10. Show Prior Periods ?

Answer ${\bf Y}$ to show prior periods as defined in the INVENTORY Control File, or ${\bf N}$ to show the current period only.

Include Qty-Returned ?

(This field displays only if you chose to show quantity returned for PTD and YTD in field 8 and chose to show prior periods in field 10.)

Answer Y to show quantity returned figures for prior periods.

11. Starting Period

12. Ending Period

Enter a range of item tracking periods (1 - 999) to include on the report.





Item Category

This report shows quantity sold, sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date and the year-to-date for each inventory item in the Item Status File, grouped according to the item's category or sub-category.

A summary showing category or sub-category totals is printed at the end of the report.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Item category*. The following screen appears:

Item category	Acme Enterprises Inc
Please enter	
1. Category	
2. Sub-category	
3. Sort by	
Press <mark>F1</mark> for "All"	

Enter the following information:

[?] 1. Category

Enter the product category for which you wish to show items, **[F1]** to show items for "All" product categories, or **[Enter]** to show only items with no product category specified in the Item File.

[?] 2. Sub-Category

Enter the product sub-category for which you wish to show items, **[F1]** to show items for "All" product sub-categories, or **[Enter]** to show only items with no product sub-category specified in the Item File.

3. Sort by

Enter 'C' to sort by category or 'S' to sort by sub-category.

4. Print Each Category on a Separate Page ?

(If you chose to sort by sub-category, this field appears as "4. Print each sub-cat on a separate page ?")

Answer Y if you want to print each category on a separate page.

[?] 5. Inventory Account

Enter the inventory account for which to print items, **[F1]** to print items for the default inventory account from the Inventory Control File, **[F2]** to scan through the other inventory accounts on file, or **[Enter]** to print items for "All" inventory accounts.

6. Show Qty-Returned for PTD and YTD ?

Answer Y if you want to show the quantity returned PTD and YTD.

7. Dollar Rounding ?

Type Y to round all dollar amounts shown on the report to the nearest dollar. Otherwise, press [Enter].

You must choose dollar rounding if your grand totals are greater than 9,999,999,999.99.

[?] 8. Warehouse

(This field appears only if you are using multi-warehousing.)

Enter the warehouse for which to print the report, [F1] for "All" warehouses, or

[Enter] to print only items with a "Central" warehouse code (if you left the warehouse code blank in the Inventory *Warehouses* selection).

9. Detail or Summary ?

Enter **D** to print both detailed information for each item, and the summary totals for each item category.

Enter **S** to print the summarized totals for each item category only.





Item Sales Volume

This report lists inventory items in order by dollar sales volume, from greatest to least. It shows quantity sold, sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date and the year-to-date.

It is based on information from the Inventory Item Status File.

To Begin

From the S/A Menu, select Item sales volume. This is the screen you see:



Enter the information as follows:

1. Period-to-Date or Year-to-Date ?

Enter **P** to print items in order by period-to-date sales volume. Enter **Y** to print them in order by year-to-date sales volume.

2. Minimum Sales Volume Level

This field allows you to examine the sales statistics for items whose sales equal or exceed a specified volume, and to ignore those items with sales volume below this level.

Enter the minimum sales volume (either PTD or YTD as specified above) that will qualify an item to appear on this report, or **[F1]** for "None" (no minimum sales volume cut-off). In this case, all items will print on the report.

[?] 3. Inventory Account

Enter the inventory account for which to print items, **[F1]** to print items for the default inventory account from the Inventory Control File, **[F2]** to scan through the other inventory accounts on file, or **[Enter]** to print items for "All" inventory accounts.

[?] 4. Product Category

Enter the product category for which you wish to show items, **[F1]** to show items for "All" product categories, or **[Enter]** to show only items with no product category specified in the Item File.

[?] 5. Product Sub-Category

Enter the product sub-category for which you wish to show items, **[F1]** to show items for "All" product sub-categories, or **[Enter]** to show only items with no product sub- category specified in the Item File.

6. Show Qty-Returned for PTD and YTD ?

Answer Y to show the quantity returned PTD (period-to-date) and YTD (year-to-date).

7. Number of Items to Print

Enter the number of items to print on the report or [F1] to print "All" item.

The report prints items in order by sales volume, from greatest to least, but stops after the number of items entered here is printed. In this way, you can look at your 10, 20, or 100 top-selling items.

8. Dollar Rounding ?

Type Y to have all dollar amounts shown on the report rounded to the nearest dollar.

You must use dollar rounding if your grand totals are more than 9,999,999,999.99.

[?] 9. Warehouse

(This field appears only if you are using multi-warehousing.)

Enter the warehouse for which to print the report, **[F1]** for "All" warehouses, or **[Enter]** to print only items with a "Central" warehouse code (if you left the warehouse code blank in the Inventory *Warehouses* selection).





Items for a Customer

This report shows quantity sold, sales, percent of sales, cost of sales, profit, and margin percent for a selected range of customers and the items sold to these customers, within up to four selected reporting periods.

Percentages are based on sales and profits within selected reporting ranges.

You can print this report in order by sales volume based on sales in the first selected reporting period.

If you are using Billing (O/E) or P/S, the amounts shown for items are obtained from the Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

If you are using P/I, the amounts shown for items are obtained from the P/I Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

If you are using a combination of Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I (with P/I interfaced with Inventory), the amounts shown for items will include information obtained from both history files.

If you are using a combination of Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I (with P/I not interfaced with Inventory), you may choose to print either goods (from P/I) or inventory items (from IC) on a particular print run.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select Items for a customer. This is the screen you see:

Items for a customer	Acme Enterprises Inc.
Please enter	
1. Starting customer	
2. Ending customer	
3. Print items from	
4. Starting item	
5. Ending item	
6. Reporting periods	
7. Dollar rounding ?	
8. In order by sales volume ?	
9. Minimum sales volume level	
10. Number of items to print	
11. Brief format ? Press <mark>F1</mark> for "First"	

Enter the following:

[?] 1. Starting Customer

[?] 2. Ending Customer

Enter the range of customers to print on the report or follow the screen instructions.

3. Print Items For

(This field appears only if both Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I are in use and P/I is not interfaced to Inventory. Otherwise, all subsequent fields are renumbered.)

You may print the report showing either goods (from P/I) or inventory items (from Inventory), as explained in the introduction.

Enter either 'G' for goods or 'I' for inventory items.

[?] 4. Starting Item

[?] 5. Ending Item

Enter the range of items to show for each selected customer or follow the screen instructions.

6. Reporting Periods

Enter from 1 to 4 reporting periods. If you enter fewer than 4 reporting periods,

press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below. The reporting periods can overlap.

If you select more than 1 reporting period, you will not be asked for an entry in field 11 below.

7. Dollar Rounding ?

Type Y to have all dollar amounts shown on the report rounded to the nearest dollar. You must use dollar rounding if your grand totals are more than 9,999,999,999.99.

8. In Order by Sales Volume ?

If you answer **N** to this question, you are not asked for an entry in field 9 or 10. If you answer **Y**, items are printed in descending order of sales volume for each customer.

The sales volume used is that from the <u>first</u> reporting period only.

9. Minimum Sales Volume Level

Enter a minimum sales volume level, or [F1] for "None" (show all items).

If you enter a sales volume level, only items with a sales volume equal to or greater than this level will be shown on the report.

10. Number of Items to Print

Enter the number of items you wish to print for each customer or **[F1]** to print "All" items.

11. Brief Format?

Answer **Y** or **N**. You will not be asked this question if you entered more than one reporting period in field 6 above.





Province / State

This report shows sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date, the year-to-date, and the last year for each customer, with the customers in order by province / state.

A summary of individual province / state totals is printed at the end of the detailed report, or can be printed separately as a summary version of the report.

The information is obtained from the A/R Customer file.

To Begin

From the S/A menu select *Province* (Canadian companies) or *State* (U.S. companies)

A screen appears for you to answer the following questions:

1. Print Each Prov. on a Separate Page ?

Answer Y to insert a page break between each province; otherwise answer N.

2. Detail or Summary ?

Enter **D** to print both detailed information for each customer, and the summary totals for each province / state. Enter **S** to print the summarized totals for each province / state only.





Postal / Zip Code

This report shows sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date , the year-to-date, and last year for each customer, with the customers in order by the postal code.

A summary of individual postal code totals is printed at the end of the detailed version of the report. Optionally, you can print the summary portion of the report only.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Postal code*. A screen appears for you to answer the following questions:

1. Print Each Postal Code on a Separate Page ?

Answer **Y** to insert a page break between each postal code group; otherwise answer **N**.

2. Detail or Summary ?

Enter **D** to print both detailed information for each customer, and the summary totals for each postal code group.

Enter **S** to print the summarized totals for each postal code group only.

3. Characters to Sort on

Enter the number of characters (1 - 10) of the postal code to group by for reporting. For example, if you want to sort and group the report by the first 2 characters of the postal code enter **2**.





Sales Rep - Actual

This report prints information about the <u>actual</u> sales made by a sales rep, versus the <u>responsible</u> sales made by a sales rep. A sales rep is responsible for a customer because the customer is assigned to him in the Customer File.

To print the detail format of this report requires that both Inventory and Accounts Receivable, and either Billing (O/E), Point of Sale, or Professional Invoicing be in use.

The summary report prints PTD and YTD summary information for each sales rep. The data for this report is obtained from the A/R Sales Rep File.

The detail report, which you can also sort by decreasing sales volume, shows the sales, cost of sales, profits, and margins for a specified number of customers for each sales rep. If you are using Billing or P/S, the information shown is obtained from the Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history). If you are using P/I, the information shown is obtained from the P/I Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history). If you are using a combination of either Billing or P/S, and P/I, the information shown is obtained from the P/I Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

- NOTE: Billing and P/S share the same Invoice History file.

To Begin

From the Sales Analysis menu, select Sales rep, actual.

A screen appears and you are asked to select either 1 for summary format or 2 for detail format.

If you choose the summary format, a menu appears for you to select how to print the
report. Follow the screen instructions.

 Actual salesrep
 Acme Enterprises Inc.

 Detail format
 Please enter

 1. Starting sales rep
 .

 2. Ending sales rep
 .

 3. Reporting periods
 .

 4. In order by sales volume ?
 .

 5. Minimum sales volume level
 .

 6. Number of customers to print
 .

 7. New page for each sales rep ?
 .

If you choose the detail format, you see the following screen:

Enter the following information:

[?] 1. Starting Sales rep

[?] 2. Ending Sales rep

Enter the range of sales reps for which to print the report. Follow the screen instructions.

3. Reporting Periods

You may enter 1 to 4 reporting periods. Only the first will be used for sorting customers by sales volume if that option is selected in field 4 below.

Each period results in a separate line on the report. There is no restriction on overlapping dates.

If you enter fewer than four periods, press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below.

You may want to compare sales reps for promotion, awards, etc., so you could set period 1 to the current sales year, period 2 to the period when sales are the best in your business, period 3 to the worst sales period, and period 4 to "010100 thru 123120", which will analyze all sales ever recorded which have not been purged.

4. In Order by Sales Volume ?

Answer Y to sort customers by sales volume, in descending order based on their sales volume in period 1. Answer N to sort customers in customer number order. If you answer N, you are not asked for an answer in the fields 5 and 6 below.

5. Minimum Sales Volume Level

This field allows you to examine the sales statistics for customers whose invoices equal or exceed a specified volume, and to ignore those customers with sales volume below this level. Enter a minimum sales volume, or use press **[F1]** for no minimum.

6. Number of Customers to Print

Enter the number of customers to print or press **[F1]** for all customers. This is the number of customers for <u>each sales</u> <u>rep</u> on the report, not the total number of customers on the entire report.

7. New Page for Each Sales Rep?

Answer Y to start each new sales rep on a new page. If a sales rep has many customers, choosing Y makes the report easier to read.





Sales Rep - Responsible

This report shows sales, cost of sales, and profit figures for the period-to-date, the year-to-date, and the last year for each customer, with customers categorized by the customer's assigned sales representative. A summary lists sales rep totals only.

Customers are listed by <u>responsible</u> sales rep. This is the sales rep <u>assigned</u> to the customer on the customer record. This is not necessarily the <u>actual</u> sales rep that made each sale to that customer. (For the <u>actual</u> sales for a sales rep, see the next Chapter.)

The report is based on the A/R Customer file.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Responsible sales rep*.

A screen appears for you to answer the following questions:

1. Print Each Sales Rep on a Separate Page ?

Answer Y to insert a page break for each new sales rep.

2. Detail or Summary ?

Enter **D** to print both detailed information for each customer, and the summary totals for each sales rep. Enter **S** to print the summarized totals for each sales rep only.





User Defined

This function allows you to define your own sales analysis report. You select the order the information is sorted by (for up to 5 levels), a range of information to include for each sorting selection, plus various reporting criteria to include/exclude such as detail, costs/profit etc.

Up to 5 levels of sorting can be made from a long list of choices.

One of the benefits of using this function is that it allows you to zoom in on specific information. For example, if you wanted to see how sales were doing for a particular category of items in a city, you could do so.

Some Features and advantages of User Defined Fields.

- UDF User ID field and grouping by User ID. Will show how many orders a user does per day.
- Decimal option for quantity in S/A user defined.
 When this feature is activated, a new field appears in S/A User Defined
 Screen: "# of Qty decimals". The user can now enter a digit between 0
 and 3. This specifies the number of decimal places. This will affect quantity
 sold and quantity lost, columns
- S/A User Defined Report include Customers with No Sales. When this feature is activated, the SA user defined report has a new option to include customers with no sales in the report.
- An "In-Transit" Warehouse can be set up and used when transferring inventory via the transfer advice report and will show in the IC transfer history.
- The Sales Analysis Report now has an option to print the item number plus any barcodes associated with it.
- The User Defined Report will now disable the costs/profit flag when the user record settings specify no for viewing margins.

- The Sales Analysis Monthly Activity Analysis now allows for any number of months from 1-13 to be entered instead of being limited to 12 or 13.
- **The User Defined Monthly Analysis Report** has added an option for "Number of months". This will control how many columns appear in the report and how far back the initial value is calculated.
- The User Defined report now has an option to select by the P/S user defined fields, and the customer bill-to name.
- The User Defined Report date ranges table has been shifted up one line and over to the right to make room for further expansion and more selection fields on the screen.
- Additions to the User Defined Fields Report
 - You now can sort by "Customer Country" enter [F1] for First and Last or one specific country.
 - The User Defined report now has the options to select by the Point of Sale (P/S) user defined fields, and the customer bill-to name.
 - We have added 2 more reporting periods for a total of 6, enter in date format MMDDYY.
 - You now have the option to show discount amounts on your UDF report as well.

To Begin

Select User defined from the S/A main menu.

A screen similar to the following appears:

er defined report			A	cme Enterprises
Report order	First	Last	New page?	_
1.	Report	order selections	_	
2.	A	Actual salesrep	1000 C	
3.	CB		ime	
4.	Y	. Customer City		
5.	0	_		
6. Reporting periods		_	1	
		. Customer number		
	Т	. Customer type		
	CF		ined fields	
	DW			
	ID			
ana sussau	IN			
7. Also sort detail by	D	. Item description		
8. Descending or asce		. Item number		
9. Number of items to		-	ields	
0. Period comparison		. Item vendor		
1. Print periods side b				
2. Print costs/profit ?	PF		elds	
	Concernance of the second	On for more		
ess TAB when done s	elections,			

Loading Previously Save Reports

If you previously saved report selection criteria, press the **[F5]** key to enter the code for the report you want to print. You can then enter a **[?]** to display a selection list of saved reports to choose from.

Once a saved report is selected you can then enter 1 to review / change the settings, 2 to print the report, or 3 to delete the saved report settings.

Saving reports is discussed in further detail later on in this Chapter.

Entering Report Criteria

Enter the following information:

Sorting Options

This report allows you to select up to 5 different fields of information stored in the A/R Customer file, the Billing (O/E) and P/S Invoice History file, and the P/I Invoice History file to use for sorting and printing on the report. Each level of sorting also allows you to select a range of information to include in the report and whether to do

a page break when the detail changes.

Report Order Selections



From the window displayed, select the field to sort on from most detail to least detail.

For example, if you want to print items, sorted by product category, and then the province they were sold in, you would enter items first (the highest level of detail), product category second, and then province last.

After entering a sorting selection, the next set of choices for sorting will be based on what you have already chosen.

When you are finished entering report order selections press **[Tab]** to continue to field 6.

[?] First [?] Last

Enter the range of information to include for each report sorting selection. Follow the screen instructions.

NOTE: This report works exclusively from the history files. For this reason you should keep the amount of information printed to a minimum. This will speed up the report, as it then does not have to read in <u>every</u> record in the history file(s) for sorting

New page ?

Answer **Y** to insert a page break when the information in this report sorting selection changes.

The following example screen shows a report that will print totals for each item category, by city, by province:

User defined	l report			Acı	me Enterprises Inc.
Р	lease enter				
Report 1. Product 2. City 3. Provinc	t category	First "First" "First" "First"	Last "Last" "Last" "Last"	New page? N N	
4. 1 5. 6. Report	T. Custo CF. Custo DW. Day o ID. Invoi IN. Invoi IF. Item	elections al salesrep omer type omer user fields of week ce date ce number user fields vendor		Jde components	
12. Print c Press TAB w	PS Produ PC Profit	lections, enter m	ost detailed level o	ude drop shipments ? w lost sales ? of report first	

The resulting report will, first, page break for each province. The information from there will be broken down to show the sales, cost of sales, and profit for each item category by city. The report might look something like this:

Province: BC City: Vancouver TOOLS INDEQ HOBBY Totals for city:

City: Victoria



Totals for province:

6. Reporting Periods

Enter from 1 to 6 reporting periods. If you enter fewer than 6 reporting periods, press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below. The reporting periods can overlap.

After entering each reporting period you will be prompted to enter a description of up to 5 characters which will be printed on the report.

If you are entering fewer than 4 periods, press [Enter] to continue to the next field.

7. Also Sort Detail By

Enter the order to further sort the entry in field 1. Valid answers include:

- N No further sorting
- **Q** Quantity
- S Sales
- C Costs
- P Profit
- **O** # of orders

Using the above screen example, by entering **P** for profit, the item categories for each city will be sorted in order of profitability. Whether to print in ascending or descending order of profitability is determined by the next field.

8. Descending or Ascending ?

(This field is skipped if **N** is selected in the previous field.)

Your entry in this field works in conjunction with your entry in the previous field, allowing you to print in either ascending or descending order.

Enter **D** to sort the entry in field 1 in descending order by your entry in the previous field, or use press **[Enter]** for none.

For example: If you entered to sort by profit in the previous field, entering **D** will sort by most profitable.

Enter **A** to sort the entry in field 1 in ascending order by your entry in the previous field or press **[Enter]** for none.

For example, if you entered to sort by profit in the previous field, entering **A** will sort by least profitable.

Maximum or Minimum

If you select to print in descending order, you will be prompted to enter a **Minimum** cut-off. Any item from field 1 that is lower than the minimum entered here will not be included on the report.

If you selected to print in ascending order, you will be prompted to enter a **Maximum** cut-off. Any item from field 1 that is higher than the maximum entered here will not be included on the report.

The purpose of this is to allow you to zoom in on your best selling, worst selling, most profitable, least profitable etc.

9. Number of Items to Print

(This field displays "N/A" and cannot be changed if you answer N in field 7 above.)

Enter the number of items entered in field 1 to include on the report from the selected ranges, or press **[F1]** for all.

This allows you to further zoom in on information. For example, you may only want to print the 2, 5, or 10 most profitable product categories or items.

10. Period Comparison Version ?

Answer **Y** to have the report compare changes from one period (as entered in field 6 above) to another. If you answer **N**, only the period figures will be printed.

11. Print Periods Side-by-Side ?

If you have entered in 2 periods in field 6, answer Y to have the figures from these two periods printed side by side.

12. Print Costs/Profit ?

Answer **Y** to print the cost and profit detail for each item. If you answer **N**, only the number of orders (invoices) in invoice history that the item(s) appear on will be printed.

13. Include Components ?

Answer Y to include or N to exclude kit component sales figures.

14. Include Adj ?

15. Include Drop Shipments ?

Answer Y to include drop shipment line items on your report.

16. Show Lost Sales ?

Valid responses are [Y] or [N]. When [Y], the new lost sale format of the user defined report will be used, when [N], the report format will be the same as before.

NOTE: Credit memos are ignored when calculating lost sales.

At the new field for **SHOW LOST SALES**, respond [Y] or [N]. The new lost-sale feature will only be available when both the period comparison version and print periods side by side fields are set to [N].

The new lost-sale layouts will report on the quantity lost, the sales lost, the number of complete lines shipped and the number of lines at least partially filled. For each amount there is a percentage that compares to the total ordered value, (quantity compared against quantity ordered, amount compared against the value of what was ordered)

There are two LOST SALE REPORT formats, dependant on the setting of the PRINT COSTS/PROFIT flag: If [N] is selected, the number of orders information will be printed. Press [F1] for profit only.

17. Show Discounts ?

Answer Y to show discounts on your report.

NOTE: When using multi-warehousing in IC and location groups in PA, this feature allows you to select warehouses by using the location group.

When entering the parameters for your User defined report, at *Warehouse*, press [F2] for entry of location group and then proceed as you normally would.

Saving a Report

This feature allows the user to save different report criteria for the User Defined report.

To use, enter a sales report as you normally would. Try to use the date codes listed below so that the layouts will work the same way each time you use them. Press [ENTER] at the field number to change.

The user has the option to review again or print the report. Review will go back to the field number to change, print report will ask if the user wishes to save the setting for this report. A response of [N] will display the window selection. With a response of [Y] the user will be prompted to name the settings. This is like a file name, no spaces or special characters should be used, although they are allowed. There is a description field for more complete classification. The printer selection window will be displayed and the report will be printed.

For subsequent printings, use [F5] to display the saved settings window. Either enter in the saved setting name or [?] for the saved report window. When the window is displayed use the standard [F1], [F2] to move forward and back, [F3] to search and [F4] to copy from the window to the screen. Once copied the setting is available to be reviewed and changed, printed or deleted. If the setting is changed, then it can be saved under the same name or a different name. Sample Report

In this section we will look at a sample report and how it was generated. The following screen shows the criteria for a user defined report which will show the most profitable product categories, in each city, in each province:

User defined report			Acme	Enterprises Inc.
Please ente	۶r			
Report order 1. Product category 2. City 3. Province 4. 5.	First "First" "First" "First"	Last "Last" "Last" "Last"	New page? N N N	
6. Reporting periods 1/01/20 4/01/20	thru 3/31/20 thru 6/30/20			
7. Also sort detail by 8. Descending or asc 9. Number of items to 10. Period comparison	print	Descending Mi No limit	e components nimum "None"	N
11. Print periods side 12. Print costs/profit? Field number to chi	by side ?	Y 14. Include Y 15. Show Id	e drop shipments ? ost sales ?	N (n/a)

The following are some ways this report may be changed to meet a specific need:

• To look at only the most profitable product category in each city, field 9 "Number of items to print" could be changed to 1. Since the report is printing in descending order of profitability, and only the first would be printed, that would

be the most profitable.

- Sometimes the quantity, sales, or profitability are not a true reflection of an item's popularity due to windfall sales. To counter this you may want to set field 7 "Also sort detail by" to # of orders. This way the report will show you the number of invoices this item appeared on.
- An alternative to the above is to select "N" to "Print costs profit". Instead of printing the costing and selling price information, the number of orders (invoices) will be printed instead.
- If you have a large amount of invoice history, you may want to make your reporting more concise. To further narrow the range of information, you could reduce the product categories or provinces to include a specific range.





Services for a Customer

This report shows quantity sold, sales, percent of sales, cost of sales, profit, and margin percent for a selected range of customers and the services sold to these customers, within up to four selected reporting periods.

Percentages are based on sales and profits within selected reporting ranges.

You can print this report in order by sales volume based on sales in the first selected reporting period.

The amounts shown for services are obtained from the P/I Invoice History File.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select Services for a customer. This is the screen you see:



Enter the following information:

[?] 1. Starting Customer

[?] 2. Ending Customer

Enter the range of customers to print on the report. Follow the screen instructions.

[?] 3. Starting Service

[?] 4. Ending Service

Enter the range of services to show for each selected customer. Follow the screen instructions.

5. Reporting Periods

Enter from 1 to 4 reporting periods. If you enter fewer than 4 reporting periods, press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below. The reporting periods can overlap.

If you select more than 1 reporting period, you will not be asked for an entry in field 9 below.

6. Dollar Rounding ?

Type Y to have all dollar amounts shown on the report rounded to the nearest dollar.

You must use dollar rounding if your grand totals are more than 9,999,999,999.99.

7. In Order by Sales Volume ?

If you answer **N** to this question, you are not asked to make an entry in field 8 or 9. If you answer **Y**, services are printed in descending order of sales volume for each customer.

The sales volume used is that from the <u>first</u> reporting period only.

8. Minimum Sales Volume Level

Enter a minimum sales volume level or press **[F1]** for none (show all services). If you enter a sales volume level, only services with a sales volume equal to or greater than this level will be shown on the report.

9. Number of Services to Print

Enter the number of services you wish to print for each customer or press **[F1]** for all services.

10. Brief Format ?

Answer **Y** or **N**. You will not be asked this question if you entered more than one reporting period in question 5 above.





Customers for a Service

This report shows quantity sold, sales amount, percent of sales, cost of sales, profit, percent of profit, and margin percent for a selected range of services and the customers those services were sold to, within up to four selected reporting periods.

Percentages are based on sales and profits within the selected reporting period.

You can print this report in order by sales volume, based on sales in the first selected reporting period.

The amounts shown for services are obtained from the P/I Invoice History File.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Customers for a service*. This is the screen you see:



Enter the following information:

[?] 1. Starting Service

[?] 2. Ending Service

Enter the range of services to print on the report. Follow the screen instructions.

[?] 3. Starting Customer

[?] 4. Ending Customer

Enter the range of customers to print for each service. Follow the screen instructions.

5. Reporting Periods

Enter from 1 to 4 reporting periods.

If you enter fewer than 4 reporting periods, press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below. The reporting periods can overlap. If you select more than 1 reporting period, you are not asked question 9.

6. In Order by Sales Volume ?

If you answer **N** to this question, you will not be asked for an entry in field 7 or 8. If you answer **Y**, customers are printed in descending order by sales volume for each service. The sales volume used is that from the <u>first</u> reporting period only.

7. Minimum Sales Volume Level

Enter a minimum sales volume level or press **[F1]** for none (print all services). If you enter a non-zero sales volume level, only services with a sales volume equal to or exceeding this level are printed.

8. Number of Services to Print

Enter the number of services you wish to print or press **[F1]** print all services. Only this number of services will print for each selected customer.

9. Brief Format ?

Answer **Y** or **N**. You will not be asked this question if you entered more than one reporting period in field 5 above.





Customer Product

This report provides a purchasing analysis for each customer (on a separate page) by product category. The analysis shows sales for the quarter, the year, last year's quarter and last year along with changes and percentages.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Customer product*. The following screen appears:

Customer product			Acme Enterprises Inc.
Please enter			
1. Si	tart customer		
2. Ei	nd customer		
3. TI	his quarter		
4. La	ast quarter		
5. TI	his year		
6. La	ast year		
Press F1 for "First"			

Enter the report criteria as follows:

[?] 1. Start Customer [?]2. End Customer

Enter a range of customers to include on the report.

- 3. This Quarter
- 4. Last Quarter
- 5. This Year
- 6. Last Year

At each date field, enter a range of transaction dates to use for inclusion on the report.





Monthly Activity Analysis

This report is designed to provide the user a summary of units sold over a 13 month period in either stocking or one of 2 alternate units of measure. Flexible selection criteria, allows the user to zoom in or out on the information they require.

To Begin

Select *Monthly activity analysis* from the S/A main menu. From the screen displayed

Loading Previously Save Reports

If you previously saved report selection criteria, press the **[F5]** key to enter the code for the report you want to print. You can then enter a **[?]** to display a selection list of saved reports to choose from.

Once a saved report is selected you can then enter **[F1]** to review / change the settings, **2** to print the report, or **3** to delete the saved report settings.

Sorting Options

This report allows you to select up to 5 different fields of information stored in the A/R Customer file, the Billing (O/E) and P/S Invoice History file, and the P/I Invoice History file to use for sorting and printing on the report. Each level of sorting also allows you to select a range of information to include in the report and whether to do a page break when the detail changes.

Report Order Selections

From the window displayed, select the field to sort on from most detail to least detail.

For example, if you want to print items, sorted by product category, and then the province / state they were sold in, you would enter items first (the highest level of detail), product category second, and then province last.

After entering a sorting selection, the next set of choices for sorting will be based on what you have already chosen. When you are finished entering report order selections press **[Tab]** to continue to field 6.

Aside from the list initially displayed, you also have the option of toggling with the **[F2]** key to select item and customer user defined fields.

[?] First [?] Last

Enter the range of information to include for each report sorting selection. Follow the screen instructions.

- NOTE: This report works exclusively from the history files. For this reason you should keep the amount of information printed to a minimum. This will speed up the report, as it then does not have to read in <u>every</u> record in the history file(s) for sorting

New Page ?

Answer **Y** to insert a page break when the information in this report sorting selection changes.

The following example screen shows a report that will print totals for each item, by item category, by item vendor:

onthly activity an	alysis			Acme Enterprises In
Please	enter			
	Report order	First	Last	New page?
1	Item number	"First"	"Last"	N
2	Product category	"First"	"Last"	N
3	. Item vendor	"First"	"Last"	
4				
5				
6	. Cut off date 1/31	/14	7. Number of mo	onths 13
	. Cut off date 1/31	/14	7. Number of mo	onths 13
8	and a second and a second			onths 13 Minimum <u>"None"</u>
8	. Also sort detail by	ling ?	Nothing]
8 9 10	. Also sort detail by . Descending or ascend	ling ? nt	Nothing Descending]
8 9 10 11	. Also sort detail by . Descending or ascend . Number of items to pri	ling ? nt on	Nothing Descending N/A]
8 9 10 11 12	Also sort detail by Descending or ascend Number of items to prin Lines of item description	ling ? nt on	Nothing Descending N/A 1 N 0]
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Also sort detail by Descending or ascend Number of items to prin Lines of item descriptio Include item summary Preferred unit	ling ? nt on lines ?	Nothing Descending N/A 1 N 0 N]
8 9 10 11 12 13 14	Also sort detail by Descending or ascend Number of items to prin Lines of item description Include item summary Preferred unit	ling ? nt on lines ? <u>Units</u>	Nothing Descending N/A 1 N 0 N	Minimum "None"

The resulting report will, first, page break for each vendor. The information from there will be broken down to show the unit sales over the past 13 months, for each item category for each vendor. The report might look something like this:

Vendor: ABC100 ABC Manufacturing

Category: HPT (Hand Power Tools) Precision multi-purpose drill tool 123456 Portable industrial drill 893331 900821 Router Totals for category: Category: SPT (Stationary Power Tools) 123456 Table saw 893331 Lathe 900821 Drill press Totals for category:

Totals for vendor:

6. Cut-Off Date

Enter the sales cut off date for information to include. For example, to include the past 13 months of data from December 31, 2001 you would enter 123101 as your cut off date. The system will include all of December sales in the current month and then show the 12 months of sales prior to December 2001.

7. Number of Months

This will control how many columns appear in the report and how far back the initial value is calculated.

8. Also Sort Detail By

Enter the order to further sort the entry in field 1. Valid answers include:

- N No further sorting
- C Current quantity
- **1 12** Quantity for a specific period
- 0 # of orders

Using the above screen example, by entering O for # of orders, the items for each category will be sorted in order of number of orders. Whether to print in ascending or descending order of profitability is determined by the next field.

9. Descending or Ascending ?

(This field is skipped if **N** is selected in the previous field.)

Your entry in this field works in conjunction with your entry in the previous field, allowing you to print in either ascending or descending order. Enter **D** to sort the entry in field 1 in descending order by your entry in the previous field, or enter **A** to sort the entry in field 1 in ascending order.

For example, if you entered to sort by # of orders in the previous field, entering **A** will sort the items by least number of orders first.

Maximum or Minimum

If you select to print in descending order, you will be prompted to enter a **Minimum** cut-off. Any item from field 1 that is lower than the minimum entered here will not be included on the report.

If you selected to print in ascending order, you will be prompted to enter a **Maximum** cut-off. Any item from field 1 that is higher than the maximum entered here will not be included on the report.

The purpose of this is to allow you to zoom in on your best selling, worst selling, most

profitable, least profitable, one shot items etc..

10. Number of Items to Print

(This field displays "N/A" and cannot be changed if you answer N in field 7 above.)

Enter the number of items entered in field 1 to include on the report from the selected ranges, or **[F1]** to print "All".

This allows you to further zoom in on information. For example, you may only want to print the 2, 5, or 10 best selling product categories or items.

11. Lines of Description ?

Enter the number of lines of description you wish to print.

Suppress Blank?

If you select to print 2 or 3 lines of description you have the option here of not printing blank description lines.

12. Include Item Summary Lines?

Answer **Y** if after each detail line (field 1 above) you want the following summary information printed:

- Sales for the current YTD
- Sales for the previous YTD
- Quantity on-hand
- Quantity committed
- Quantity on backorder
- Quantity on-order
- Minimum and maximum stocking levels
- Average sale quantity
- Unit average cost

13. Preferred Unit

Enter **0** if you want the report printed in stocking units, **1** to report in alternate selling unit 1, or **2** to report in alternate selling unit 2. Items that do not have an alternate selling unit will be reported in the stocking unit.

14. Include Adjustments ?

Answer Y to include adjustment entries.

15. Dollars or Units ?

Specify to print this report by either dollars or units. In addition, the dollars and units can be rounded to the nearest thousand or the high thousand.

D.	Dollars	
Ε.	Dollars to nearest thousand	
F.	Dollars to higher thousand	
۰U.	Units	
٧.	Units to nearest thousand	
W.	Units to higher thousand	
1		

16. Print Grand Totals ?

Note that the "grand totals" printed on a Sales Analysis Report often reflect the total quantity and / or value of all sales. "Grand totals" are often misinterpreted as "column totals".

17. Include Drop Shipments ?

Answer Y to include drop shipped invoice line items.





Cat / Sub-Category for a Customer

This report is available in a brief and detailed version, with the detailed version including item detail. Each shows the quantity sold, and sales amount sorted by customer.

If you are using Billing (O/E) or P/S, the amounts shown for items are obtained from the Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

If you are using P/I, the amounts shown for items are obtained from the P/I Invoice History File (if you keep invoice history).

If you are using a combination of Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I (with P/I interfaced with Inventory), the amounts shown for items will include information obtained from both history files.

If you are using a combination of Billing (O/E) or P/S, and P/I (with P/I not interfaced with Inventory), you may choose to print either goods (from P/I) or inventory items (from Inventory) on a particular print run.

To Begin

From the S/A menu, select *Cat / sub-cat for a customer*. From the screen displayed enter the following:

[?] 1. Starting Customer

[?] 2. Ending Customer

Enter the range of customers to print on the report or follow the screen instructions.

[?] 3. Starting Item [?] 4. Ending Item

Enter the range of items to show for each selected customer or follow the screen instructions.

[?] 5. Starting Category

[?] 6. Ending Category

Enter the range of item categories to show for each selected customer or follow the screen instructions.

[?] 7. Starting Sub-Category [?] 8. Ending Sub-Category

Enter the range of item sub-categories to show for each selected customer or follow the screen instructions.

9. Reporting Periods

Enter up to 2 reporting periods. If you enter fewer than 2 reporting periods, press **[Enter]** for the starting date to go on to the next question below. The reporting periods can overlap.

10. Dollar Rounding ?

Type Y to have all dollar amounts shown on the report rounded to the nearest dollar. You must use dollar rounding if your grand totals are more than 9,999,999,999.99.

11. Brief Format ?

Answer Y if you do not want to include item detail.





Five Year Item History

To Begin

Select the 5 Year Item History from the Sales Analysis Menu.

You see:



Enter the following information

[?] Item

Enter the item # or use one of the options:

Options:	[F1]	to select the first item
	[Enter]	to select by entering a description

[?] Warehouse

If using multi-warehousing enter the warehouse number or use one of the options:

Options: [F1] to select the first [Enter] to select all warehouses

The whole year from January to December is now on one line, each month is totalled and the average is provided.

Press [F5] to display the 5 year totals.

Press [Tab] to exit.

<u>Sales Analysis</u> Samco Software Inc.





Item Fill-Rate

Utilize this report to see how well you're fulfilling Billing orders based on quantity order versus quantity shipped.

To Begin

Select Item fill-rate from the Sales Analysis Menu.

You see:

🕪 🛇 X 🕲 🛩 🗸 X 🗸 🕇 🖡			12:31pm
Item Fill Rate Print			Sales Station #001
Please enter			
	First	Last	
 Customer-# Item-# Item Category Primary vendor Order Date Include negative qty a Report format 	and CR-Memo ?		
Press <mark>F1</mark> for "First"			

Enter the following report criteria. Note that the prompts at the bottom of the screen provide field entry options.

[?] Customer-# First / Last

Enter a range of customers to be included.

[?] Item-# First / Last

Enter a range of items to be included.

[?] Item Category First / Last

Enter a range of item categories to be included.

[?] Primary vendor First / Last

Enter a range of item primary vendors to be included.

[?] Order date First / Last

Enter an order date range to be included.

Include negative qty and CR-Memo?

Answer \mathbf{Y} to include order lines with a negative quantity, or credit memo type documents. Typically you'll answer \mathbf{N} to this option.

[?] Warehouse

Enter a warehouse where transactions occurred to narrow down report or press [F1] to include "All" warehouses.

Report format

Options include:

- **[D]** Detailed version provides transaction by transaction detail;
- [C] Grouped by customer, summarizes fill rate for a customer by item;
- [I] Provides company wide fill rate by item;
- **[W]** Grouped by warehouse with fill rate by item;





X. Export Printer Reports

Available Reports

- User Defined Report
- Item Fill-Rate

Printing reports to an export file

Due to popular demand, there are now a number of reports that you can print to the 'X' Export printer and we keep adding more.

In order to open reports printed to the 'X' printer, the user must have access to their local directory. If you are a Thin Client® user, you must identify the directory in SYSTEM FUNCTIONS \rightarrow COMPANY DATA. The default is C:\SSIDOCS\.

Each report printed to the 'X' printer is assigned a default file name. After you select the 'X' printer, a pop-up window will prompt **[F1]** to accept the default filename displayed or enter your own filename. Remember to assign a unique filename to each report that you wish to keep as filenames can be reused and the data over-written.

Note: A report printed to disk cannot be later printed to the 'X' printer.

The first time that you select the 'X' Export "printer" from the pop-up Printer Selection window, the system may prompt you to identify which program should be used to open the file. The export files are designed to be opened with Excel. However, they can be opened with any software that can access tab delimited files (e.g. Windows, Thin Client®).

Please note that there may be a delay between the time the report has 'finished printing' and the time the Excel worksheet opens. This delay is dependent upon your

system activity levels.



Enter the parameters for your report as you normally do.

When the Printer selection popup window is displayed, select the 'X' printer.

MIXC:IC-Valuation report File Edik AR IC OE SA AP PC GL JC PO BR PI CL	le le	
File Edit AR IC OE SA AP PC GL JC PO BR PI CL	PS TC PER PA DX SR SF Help	
Reports		Acme Enterprises Inc.
Valuation report		
valuation report		
Enter name for export file		
rwtab/		
TAB=cancel F1=ic_valuation.tab		
Any change ? N		

Follow the system prompts to cancel the report request or accept the default file name OR Type a new file name.



Windows or Thin Client® will open the export file using the program that you selected. The following example is from Excel 2007.

If prompted, select the program

that Windows is to use to open

your Xport file(s).

) × (24 ×) ∓									ic_valuation	atab - N	/licrosoft E	xcel											
Hom	e Insert Page Layout	Form	iulas D	Data Revi	ew Vie	w																		0 -
🗎 🔏 Cu	t Calibri -	11	· A A	=		📑 Wrap 1	ext	General	-			Normal		Bad	60	bod	Neutral			-		Σ AutoSum	A7 .00	
🔲 🖓 co	Py .									- -					_						للتنهي	😺 Fill -	Zi uru	
aste 🚽 Fo	rmat Painter		≫ - <u>A</u> -	===		Merge Merge	& Center *	\$ %	, .0 .00	Conditional Formatting *		Calculat	ion	Check Ce	EX	planatory	Input	7	insert	Delete I	Format	🧟 Clear *	Sort & Find Filter * Select	
Clipboa	rd 🕞 Fon	it	6		Aligni	ment	5	Num	ber 🗟					Style	s					Cells		E	liting	
A1		ltem-n	0																					
A	в с р		E	F	G	н	1	1	K	L	N	N	0	Р	Q	R	S	т	U	v	V	/ X	Y	Z
Item-no	Desc-1 Desc-2 Desc-		ategory	Sub-cat I			Qty-on-ha	2ty-comn R	teord-lev BO-			k-status Ve	end-# I	Price-1	Retail-val	Net-aty	/lax-oty							
	Multi-currency item				200-000	\$11.99	2	0	0 8		3.98		100	\$24.00	\$48.00	2	4,937							
2	Hammer, 16 Oz. Claw	т	OOLS	н 1	210-000	\$23.00	-11	0	0 8	(\$25	3.00) O		1000	\$12.00	(\$132.00)	-11	206							
3	Wrench, 3/8" Socket Set	т	OOLS	1	210-000	\$10.00	468	20	0 8	****	unnn		1000	\$18.00	*****	2,025	148							
4	Saw, 2Hp 7 1/4" Circular	т	OOLS		210-000	\$0.00	206	0	0 B	s	0.00			\$42.00	*****	206	-71							
5	Chisel, 5 Pc. Set search	h Ti	OOLS	1	210-000	\$8.98	50,391	0	0 B	****			1000	\$13.91	*****	50,424	73							
6	Motor, 2hp Submersible	P.	ARTS	1	210-000	\$26.50	5	0	25 B	\$13	2.50 R		1000	\$45.00	\$225.00	9	108							
7	7 Gauge, Hi-pressure	т	OOLS	1	210-000	\$16.00	120	0	0 B	****			1000	\$16.00	*****	124	40							
	1" Steel b Product of B.C.	P.	ARTS	1	210-000	\$0.08	11,761	0	0 B	\$91	8.89		100	\$1.00	*****	12,101	1,343							
s	Lathe, Wood	10	NDEQ	1	210-000	\$14.54	11	0	0 B	\$15	9.92		800	\$348.00	*****	11	7							
10	Compressor, Air	10	NDEQ	1	210-000	\$101.75	26	0	0 B	****			800	\$195.00	*****	26	14							
11	Saw, Table 4' x 6'	т	OOLS	1	210-000	\$198.00	57	0	0 B	****			1000	\$290.00	*****	57	2							
17	Oil Lubric: Hi-grade Synthe	tic N	AISC	OIL 1	210-000	\$0.00	-12	0	0 B	Ś	0.00 O		800	\$3.25	(\$39.00)	-12	24							
13	Saw, 8Hp Concrete / Woo	d/s Ti	OOLS	1	210-000	\$5.00	17	0	0 B	\$8	5.00			\$42.00	\$714.00	17	0							
14	Oil, Lubricating 4L	N	AISC	OIL 1	210-000	\$0.00	42	0	16 X	s	0.00		800	\$9.95	\$417.90	42	6							
	Motor, 2hp Submersible	P.	ARTS	1	210-000	\$0.11	1	0	25 B	s	0.11 R		1000	\$0.34	\$0.34	1	108							
	Wire, Copper, 20Ga.	P	ARTS		210-000	\$0.03	2,000	0	0 8		0.00		100	\$1.00	******	177,000	0							
	Paint, Latex Inter. White	P	ARTS		210-000	\$10.65	28	0	0 8		8.20		800	\$18.00	\$504.00	28	14							
	Paint, Env Environm (Pleas	se ck P	ARTS		210-000	\$10.95	215	0	0 8				800	\$20.66	******	215	32							
	Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP		210-000	\$0.55	-90,258	0	0 8				800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-90.258	0							
	Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP	1	210-000	\$0.30	-90,271	0	0 8				800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-90,271	0							
	Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP		210-000	\$1.50	-40,118	0	0 B				800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-40,118	0							
	Compone Bird House A diff		OMP		210-000	\$1.50	-40,151	1	0 8				800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-40,152	55							
	Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP		210-000	\$0.50	-40,113	0	0 8				800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-40,113	0							
	Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP		210-000	\$1.00	-9,918	1	80 B				800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-9,919	170							
	7 Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP		210-000	\$2.10	-40,118	0	0 8		······		800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-40,118	0							
	Compone Bird House Kit #		OMP		210-000	\$0.28	10,495	0	0 8					\$0.00	\$0.00	10,495	0							
	Compone Bird Hous A diff				210-000	\$1.50	-3	0	0 8	(\$	4.50) O		800	\$0.00	\$0.00	-3	0							
	Sand Paper 100G Bulk		ARTS		210-000	\$0.01	324	0	0 8		2.33		800	\$1.00	\$324.00	324	76							
	BROCCOLI : DECATHALON				210-000	\$0.50	530	0	0 8		5.00		100	\$1.50	\$795.00	530	10							
	Regulator Pos	N	AT		210-000	\$2.00	5	0	0 B		0.00			\$0.00	\$0.00	5	0							
	Component #1				210-000	\$0.00	-14	11	0 B		0.00 O			\$1.00	(\$14.00)	-25	1							
	L Component #2			1	210-000	\$0.00	-17	11	0 B	Ś	0.00 O			\$1.00	(\$17.00)	-28	0							
	Component #3			1	210-000	\$0.00	-25	31	0 B	Ś	0.00 O			\$1.00	(\$25.00)	-56	3							
	Regulator Neg	N	AT		210-000	\$2.00	5	0	0 8		0.00			\$0.00	\$0.00	5	0							
	Blow down valve				210-000	\$3.00	5	0	0 8		5.00			\$0.00	\$0.00	5	0							
	TYPE E MC 2 BOLT PIL 1-3/10				210-000	\$12.57	5	0	0 8		2.85		100	\$28.00	\$140.00	5	0							
	Gift Card				210-000	\$0.00	17	0	0 8		0.00			\$0.00	\$0.00	17	0							
10-26525					210-000	\$35.00	8	0	0 8		0.00			\$35.00	\$280.00	8	0							
b bl ic	valuation 🖉						-				-						-							

How to set the default for opening a SAMCO .tab file in Windows XP



Control Panel ile Edit View Favorites	Tools	Help					R				
🕃 Back 👻 🕥 👻 🏂		•	olders 🛄	- 🔞 Folde	er Sync						
idress 🚱 Control Panel											v 🔁
Control Panel	۲	Ġ,	Ń	5		2	P		N	đ	Solution
🚱 Switch to Category View	,	Accessibility Options	Add Hardware	Add or Remov	Administra Tools	Automatic Updates	Date and Time	Display	Folder Options	Fonts	Game Controllers
See Also	۲		P			Ċ			4	4	<u> </u>
🍓 Windows Update 🕜 Help and Support		Intel(R) GMA Driver for	Internet Options	Keyboard	Mail	Mouse	Network Connections	Phone and Modem	Power Options	Printers and Faxes	l Regional and Language
		3	B	۲	O,	3			<u> </u>	¢;)))
		Scanners and Ca	Scheduled Tasks	Security Center	Sounds and Audio De	Speech	System	Taskbar and Start Menu	User Accounts	Windows Firewall	Wireless Netwo

3. Click on the Folder Options icon

4. Click on the <i>File Types</i> tab
 4. Citck on the File Types tab Show common tasks in folders Use Windows classic folders Browse folders Open each folder in the same window Open each folder in its own window Click items as follows Single-click to open an item (point to select) Underline icon titles only when I point at them Double-click to open an item (single-click to select) Restore Defaults



Folder Options 💦 💽 🔀			
General View File Types Offline Files			
Registered file types:			
Extensions File Types			
STM SmarTerm Macro Language			
😅 STW SmarTerm Session			
📾 SWF Shockwave Flash Object			
🖼 SWS SmarTerm WorkSpace			
🔤 SYS System file			
🔀 TAB TAB File			
TDV CmarTam Taalbar			
New Delete			
Details for 'TAB' extension			
Opens with: 🕟 Microsoft Office Excel Change			
To change settings that affect all 'AudioCD' files, click Advanced.			
Restore			
OK Cancel Apply			

6. Click Delete to remove the file type OR
 Click Change to change the default for Opens with



- 1. Begin by clicking on the Windows icon
- 2. Click on *Control Panel*



3. Click on the *Default Programs* icon



4. Click on Associate a file type or protocol with a program

Cho	ose the programs that Windows uses by default
	Set your default programs Make a program the default for all file types and protocols it can open.
F	Associate a file type or protocol with a program Make a file type or protocol (such as .mp3 or http://) always open in a specific program.
	Change AutoPlay settings Play CDs or other media automatically
	Set program access and computer defaults Control access to certain programs and set defaults for this computer.

5. Drag the scroll bar until you see .tab TAB File

Associate a file type or protocol with a specific program Click on an extension to view the program that currently opens it by default. To change the default program, click Change program.

Windows Media Player Microsoft Corporation

Name	Description	Current Default	
∐ .snag	Snagit Editor image	Snagit Editor	
lsnagacc	SnagIt Accessory Installer	Snagit	
🔊 .snagprof	Snaglt Capture Profile	Snagit	
🔊 .snd	AU Format Sound	Windows Media Player	
.snippet	Visual Studio Code Snippet File	Unknown application	
 solitairesave-ms 	Solitaire Save Game	Executable for Solitaire Game	
📮 .spc	PKCS #7 Certificates	Crypto Shell Extensions	
🔊 .spidersolitairesave-ms	Spider Solitaire Save Game	Executable for Spider Solitaire Game	
🖻 .spj	SPJ File	Doxillion Document Converter	
.spl	Shockwave Flash Object	Unknown application	
🖲 .sr2	SR2 File	Windows Live Photo Gallery	
🖲 .sıf	SRF File	Windows Live Photo Gallery	
🖻 .sst	Microsoft Serialized Certificate Store	Crypto Shell Extensions	
.stl	Certificate Trust List	Crypto Shell Extensions	
.stm	SmarTerm Macro Language	Unknown application	
.stw	SmarTerm Session	SmarTerm executable	
🕘 .svg	SVG Document	Internet Explorer	
.swf	Shockwave Flash Object	Unknown application	
.sws	SmarTerm WorkSpace	SmarTerm executable	
.sys	System file	Unknown application	
🖻 .tab	TAB File	Microsoft Office Excel	
🖻 .tar	TAR File	Doxillion Document Converter	
≓ .tar.gz	GZ File	Doxillion Document Converter	
.tbx	SmarTerm Toolbar	Unknown application	
thmx.	Microsoft Office Theme	Microsoft Office PowerPoint	
🖲 .tif	TIFF Image	Windows Live Photo Gallery	
🖲 .tiff	TIFF Image	Windows Live Photo Gallery	
🔳 .tmp	TMP File	Notepad	
trg.	SmarTerm Triggers	Unknown application	

4. Click on the .tab line and then choose the program you want to use to open .tab files.

Close

?

Change program...

Open with	×
Choose the program you want to use to open this file: File: .tab	
Recommended Programs	
Microsoft Office Excel Microsoft Corporation	
Other Programs	*
\checkmark Always use the selected program to open this kind of file	Browse
	OK Cancel